South Carolina Court of Appeals

Appeal from the Administrative Law Court

Hon. H.W. Funderburk, Jr.

Appeal case No. 2019-001410

Gregory Penille, #312332, Appellant

v.

SC Dept. of Corrections, Respondent.

APPELLANT BRIEF

RECEIVED

OCT 17 2019

SC Court of Appeals

Gregory Penille, #312332

Evans CJ F4A 253

610 Hwy 9 west

Bennettsville, SC, 29512

Appellant, Pro Se

CASE

ISSUE ON APPEAL

Did the South Carolina Administrative Law court improperly affirm the Department of Corrections Sentence calculation of Appellant Perille's Jail credit?

Where the order issued by the ALC improperly indicates an indictment number [2010-65-2604686] twice, [Exhibit A] which is not an actual indictment number. Does this error invalidate the ALC's order in its entirety?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On November 7th, 2005, Appellant was sentenced in Horry County to twelve (12) years for kidnapping on indictment number [2005-65-2054]. [Exhibit B.]

On August 9th, 2010, Appellant was sentenced in Horry County to thirty (30) years for criminal sexual contact, first degree on indictment number [2008-65-2604686]. [Exhibit C] from a case allegedly occurring in 2004. This sentence was to run concurrently with the 05' sentence for kidnapping that appellant was still serving. However, the Judge along

with Solicitor. Lively's insistence allowed jail credit for time served from October 2008. The Dept. calculated the appellant was entitled to 677 days from Oct 1st, 2008 to August 9th, 2010. Effectively, the Judge calculated the sentence start date to be October, 1st, 2008.

Appellant filed Step 1 Grievance on August 15th, 2018 [Exhibit D.] arguing that credit should have been calculated from Nov. 7th, 2005. The Grievance was denied on August 24th, 2018, but in SCDC's response by the Warden it clearly states that the appellant's sentence are concurrent, but claims that Percille only has 677 days jail credit on his 30 year sentence despite that his confinement originally began on Nov. 7th, 2005. 677 days credit is clearly far less days than the difference between August 9th, 2010 commitment on CSC, 1st, and the original Nov. 7th, 2005 commitment. [Perversely, SCDC explains possible loss of good time credit due to failure to earn work credits or possible RAV lockup time. Percille has never been or never will be entitled by law to good time earned credits.] Appellant filed Step 2 Grievance on August 30th, 2018 [Exhibit F] contesting the same issue of original start date of sentence and credits to be calculated from Nov 7th, 2005. This Grievance was denied

October 25th, 2018 and in the agencies response stated the 30 year sentence with the start date of Nov, 7th, 2005, but then projected a release date of ~~Nov~~ March 26th, 2034. In this case SCDC correctly identified the sentence start date (despite the illegal start-date marked upon the sentencing sheet by the trial court) but failed to properly calculate that a 30 year sentence at 85% only requires 25 years and 6 months, (that would obviously place Pencille's release date in 2030 not 2034).

Appellant promptly filed an appeal with the ALC on Nov. 16th, 2018 [Exhibit H] raising the same issue of jail time credits. Appellant filed his brief on December 7th, 2018 [Exhibit I, 4 pages] followed by SC DOC filing record on appeal Feb. 1st, 2019 and its brief on March 19th, 2019. Nothing further was filed until the final order was filed July 24th, 2019, 4 months to render a decision affirming the Dept's calculation, for which appellant filed a response to the order Aug. 6th, 2019 [Exhibit J, 2 pages] to correct the error in the order of the indictment number being false, corrupting the entire order. The ALC did not respond or address this issue, Appellant then timely filed with the

SC Court of Appeals on August 20th, 2019

ARGUMENT

Where Appellant argued that SCDC improperly constructed and computed Pencille's concurrent 30 year commitment for CSC, 1st, sentenced in 2010, indicted in 2008, issued warrant in 2007. When Pencille had been in custody continuously from 2005, [Upon the face of the sentencing sheet, the trial court ordered Pencille to begin service of his concurrent sentence in 2008 but ordered it in the court room to be served concurrent with the charge currently serving; (Plea transcript, pg 25, Ln 19-20)]

Court: ... I'm going to run that concurrent with the sentence that you are presently serving. I'll give you credit for the time you were charged with this, okay?
but this was in violation of SC code

Ann § 24-13-40 that requires mandatory credit for time served. The CSC, 1st for which Pencille was sentenced in 2010 was allegedly committed in 2004 - plainly prior to his arrest in 2005].

If SC. DOC is only an administrator for calculating an inmates sentence and has

No sentencing authority. Tant V. SC, DOC, 408, SC 334, 759 S.E.2d 398, 399 (2014). Then how does a "court-ordered ATU and 44-48-50 SVPA statute show added to Percille's S.C.D.C institutional record [Exhibit K], where it does not appear anywhere on the face of the sentencing sheet [Exhibit C]?

The concurrent sentence is the legal standing for which the Judge imparts the sentence structure for Percille's sentence, but "since 2008" is an illegal enhancement that the Judge added to the sentence sheet, [Exhibit C]. Statute § 24-13-40(c)(2) can not apply due to the sentence not being a second offense.

In the ALC's final order respondent argues round-about issues and only one pertaining to the issue of sentence start-date which derives from SC, code Ann § 24-13-40 (2). Which respondent misapplies its meaning, Allen V. State, 339 SC 398, 529 S.E.2d 541 (2000). Where the terms of a statute are clear, The court must apply those terms according to their literal meaning.

"2). when the prisoner is serving a sentence for one offense and is awaiting trial and sentencing for a Second offense in which case he shall not receive credit for the time served prior to trial in a reduction of his sentence for the Second

offense, [emphasis added]. The use of the word "Second, (Webster's Dictionary 10th Ed.). Next to the first in place or time." An offense which occurred prior to the first offense could not be a second offense. If it is, It becomes an illegal Ex post facto enhancement violating Art. I, § 10, c11 of the US, and state constitutions and implicates an 8th Amendment issue. The respondent changes the word "second" to "different" to explain the meaning of § 24-13-40(2) statute [Exhibit A, page 3] which changes its interpretation. Paschel v. State Election Comm'n, 317 S.C. 434, 454 SE 2d 840 (1995). The words of the statute must be given their plain and ordinary meaning without resorting to subtle or forced construction to limit or expand its scope.

SC. code Ann § 1-23-600(E); and § 1-23-380 (A)(5) places descresion within the ALC's Jurisdiction. see. Alshabazz v. State, 338, S.C. 354, 527 SE 2d 742 (2000). SC. code Ann § 123380 (A)(5)(a-f) all apply in this instance. Reciting the Black's Law definition of "substantial Evidence" while looking elegant is in actuality a stratagem, as is the use of the incorrect indictment number twice, [Exhibit A]. While the issues of the court ordered ATU program and SVPA additions to

Percille's sentence that are not on the sentencing sheet and the illegally added "since 2008" back-date that appears on the sentencing sheet [Exhibit C] are prima facie is reversal of the ALC's decision. The Appellant's ALC initial Brief [Exhibit I] should be reviewed de novo.

CONCLUSION

Appellant requests and prays that for the above reasons this court reverses the ALC's decision to affirm the SC. DOC ruling and that this court rule that the Administrative Law Judge order that SC. DOC Classification recalculate Percille's sentence start-date to Nov. 7th, 2005 and recalculate Percille's release date to 2030.