RECEIVED

Sep 01 2020

SC Court of Appeals

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT

Administrative Law Judge H. W. Funderburk, Jr.

ALC Case No. 18-ALJ-04-0547-AP
Appellate Case No. 2019-001410

GREGORY PENCILLE, # 312332,

APPELLANT,

v.

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS,

RESPONDENT.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

**SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT
OF CORRECTIONS**

Kensy Evans

Deputy General Counsel

Office of General Counsel

South Carolina Department of Corrections

Post Office Box 21787

Columbia, South Carolina 29221

(803) 896-8508

ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF ISSUE ON APPEAL

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT PROPERLY AFFIRMED THE DECISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS WHERE APPELLANT FAILED TO SHOW THE DEPARTMENT'S CALCULATION OF HIS SENTENCE WAS INCORRECT.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This matter comes before the Court pursuant to the appeal of Gregory Pencille, an inmate incarcerated with the Department of Corrections. Appellant filed a Step One Grievance on August 15, 2018, seeking a change to his sentence calculation. This grievance was investigated and denied when it was determined that SCDC has properly calculated Appellant's sentence. Appellant filed a Step Two Grievance on August 30, 2018. This grievance was also investigated and denied. Appellant filed a Notice of Appeal in the Administrative Law Court on November 15, 2018. Thereafter, on July 24, 2019, the Honorable H. W. Funderburk, Jr. issued an order affirming the decision of the Department of Corrections. This appeal follows.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

S.C. Code Ann. § 1-23-610(B) provides the applicable standard of review:

The review of the administrative law judge's order must be confined to the record. The reviewing tribunal may affirm the decision or remand the case for further proceedings; or it may reverse or modify the decision if the substantive rights of the petitioner have been prejudiced because the finding, conclusion, or decision is:

- (a) in violation of constitutional or statutory provisions;
- (b) in excess of the statutory authority of the agency;
- (c) made upon unlawful procedure;
- (d) affected by other error of law;
- (e) clearly erroneous in view of the reliable, probative and substantial evidence on the whole record; or
- (f) arbitrary or capricious or characterized by abuse of discretion or clearly unwarranted exercise of discretion.

S.C. Code Ann. § 1-23-380(5).

In an appeal of a final decision of an administrative agency, the standard of appellate review is whether the ALC's findings are supported by substantial evidence. S.C. Code Ann. § 1-23-610(B). "Substantial evidence" is evidence which, considering the record as a whole, would allow a reasonable mind to reach the same conclusion that administrative agency reached. Hendley v. S.C. State Budget & Control Bd., 325 S.C. 413, 481 S.E.2d 159 (Ct. App. 1996). A reviewing court shall not substitute its own judgment for that of the ALC as to findings of fact, but it may reverse or modify decisions that are controlled by errors of law or that are clearly erroneous in view of the substantial evidence on the record as a whole. Id.

ARGUMENT

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT PROPERLY AFFIRMED THE DECISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS WHERE APPELLANT FAILED TO SHOW THE DEPARTMENT'S CALCULATION OF HIS SENTENCE WAS INCORRECT.

In this case, the Administrative Law Court properly affirmed the decision of the Department of Corrections, and Appellant has failed to show that the Department of Corrections committed any error with respect to the calculation of his sentence. On August 9, 2010, Appellant was sentenced to thirty years for Criminal Sexual Conduct in the First Degree ("CSC").¹ *See* R. p. 7. Appellant was sentenced under S.C. Code Ann. § 16-3-652, which "is a felony punishable by imprisonment for not more than thirty years, according to the discretion of the court." By definition, this meets the classification of a "no parole offense." *See* S.C. Code Ann. § 24-13-100 ("A 'no parole offense' means a class A, B, or C felony . . . which is punishable by a maximum term of imprisonment for twenty years or more."); § 24-13-150 (generally, stating that offenses carrying twenty years or more are 85% no-parole offenses); § 16-1-30 ("All criminal offenses created by statute after July 1, 1993, must be classified according to the maximum term of imprisonment provided in the statute and pursuant to Sections 16-1-10 and 16-1-20"); § 16-1-20(A)(1) ("A person convicted of classified offenses, must be imprisoned as follows: (1) for a Class A felony, not more than thirty years."). Therefore, Appellant must be incarcerated at least 85% of his sentence.

Appellant argues that his CSC conviction start date should be November 7, 2005, based on his Kidnapping conviction. However, this is not correct. Appellant was credited 677 days of jail time credit for his CSC sentence. *See* R. p. 21. S.C. Code Ann. § 24-13-40 states:

¹ Appellant also has a conviction from Kidnapping, for which he was sentenced to twelve years' incarceration on

The computation of the time served by prisoners under sentences imposed by the courts of this State must be calculated from the date of the imposition of the sentence. [. . .] In every case in computing the time served by a prisoner, full credit against the sentence must be given for time served prior to trial and sentencing, and may be given for any time spent under monitored house arrest. **Provided, however, that credit for time served prior to trial and sentencing shall not be given:** (1) when the prisoner at the time he was imprisoned prior to trial was an escapee from another penal institution; or (2) **when the prisoner is serving a sentence for one offense and is awaiting trial and sentence for a second offense in which case he shall not receive credit for time served prior to trial in a reduction of his sentence for the second offense.**

(Emphasis added). Therefore, Appellant is not entitled to jail time beginning November 7, 2005, as he was serving his Kidnapping conviction. *See* R. pp. 3; 6; 19-20.

SCDC is “confined to the face of the sentencing sheets in determining the length of a sentence [unless . . .] there is an ambiguity in the sentencing sheets.” *Tant v. S. Carolina Dep’t of Corr.*, 408 S.C. 334, 337, 759 S.E.2d 398, 399 (2014), *reh’g denied* (July 10, 2014); *see also* ALC Order, p. 3. Appellant’s sentencing sheet, is in no way ambiguous. Appellant’s CSC sentencing sheet was clear that he should be credited with jail time “since October 2008”.² *See* R. pp. 3; 7. Therefore, 677 days were added to his conviction as there are 677 days between October 1, 2008 and August 9, 2010. Based on this jail time and his 85% sentence calculation, Appellant’s max-out date is March 26, 2034.

The record conclusively establishes that the “substantial evidence on the whole record” supports the Department’s final agency decision. Appellant has the burden of proving that the decision of the Department is clearly erroneous, or arbitrary or capricious, or an abuse of

November 7, 2005. *See* R. p. 6. This sentence has already been completed.

² To be clear, this is the only jail time to which Appellant is entitled on this conviction due to his previous conviction of Kidnapping for which he was already serving. This was explained in more details in the foregoing paragraphs.

discretion. *See Porter v. Public Service Comm'n*, 333 S.C. 12, 507 S.E.2d 328 (1998).
Appellant has not met his burden to demonstrate SCDC is incorrectly calculating his sentence.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the Court should affirm the Administrative Law Court's
decision below.